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ADDENDUM # 1   
 
This addendum is to clarify language in the advertised solicitation and answer vendor questions 
that were submitted prior to the deadline for questions to be received.   
 
RFP Page 1, Section I. Overview should read, “The State of Delaware Department of 
Government Support Services seeks professional services to provide turnkey solutions for 
building access and video surveillance systems inclusive of hardware and software 
installation, software upgrades and maintenance options.” 
 
Appendix C has been revised to include an additional column for Unit of Measure on the 
Server Updates tab.  Please use Appendix C – Revised for responding. 
 
Q.1. Is this a body camera system RFP or is it for Cameras and Access Control for the 

State of Delaware buildings and/or facilities? 
 
A.1. This is for Building Access and Video Surveillance Systems for State of Delaware 

buildings and facilities. 
 
Q.2. The RFP posted seems a bit vague from what I’m seeing so I was writing to see 

where I can obtain more information such as prints or detailed specs and if a pre-bid 
meeting would be established at any point? 

A.2. Please refer to RFP Page 2, STATEMENT OF NEEDS.  This RFP is intended to create 
a short list of pre-qualified vendors so that Agencies can use to obtain quotes. 
Appendix B, SCOPE OF WORK AND TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS, Section IX 
provides additional information regarding the Job Bid Competition process and the 
requirements for each quote submitted. 
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Q.3. How would we go about scheduling a meeting to present our solution for 

consideration on this contract as an approved manufacturer? 
A.3. Vendors must respond to the RFP by providing the required documents to be 

considered for award.  Please read the RFP in its entirety for all requirements.  After 
initial scoring of the proposals, vendors may be invited to make oral presentations 
to the Evaluation Team as addressed in the RFP on Page 15, Section 5. 

 
 Page 9 part 14 Sub-Contracting  

a. The vendor selected shall be solely responsible for contractual performance 
and management of all subcontract relationships. This contract allows 
subcontracting assignments; however, vendors assume all responsibility for 
work quality, delivery, installation, maintenance, and any supporting services 
required by a subcontractor. 

Q.4.a. Can you clarify Delaware Workplace Fraud Act as it relates to Delaware Code, Title 
19, Chapter 35 ? 

A.4.a. Title 19, Chapter 35 § 3503 (f) states “The Department (of Labor) shall adopt 
regulations to further explain and provide specific examples of subsections (c), (d), 
and (e) of this section.” 

 
Q.4.b. This is a highly debated topic right now and is undergoing proposed amendments. 

(Vendor) has not to date and does not “intend” to sub-contract work under this 
contract that we could otherwise do ourselves, but recognize that this practice is 
used by others and would like to have the ability to utilize sub-contractors in the 
event we absolutely would need them to augment our staffing needs in order to meet 
customer deadlines. 

A.4.b. Vendors are to comply with all federal, state and local laws applicable to its activities 
during the performance of work under the awarded contract. 

 
Q.4.c. Or does this get summed up under Page 26 section aa. “Applicable Law” 
A.4.c. Yes. 
 
 Page 16 Paragraph b General Information  

a. As a Service subscription license costs shall be incurred at the individual 
license level only as the individual license is utilized within a fully functioning 
solution. Subscription costs will not be applicable during periods of 
implementation and solution development prior to the State’s full acceptance 
of a working solution. Additional subscription license requests above actual 
utilization may not exceed 5% of the total and are subject to Delaware budget 
and technical review. 

Q.5. Can you clarify what is meant by this paragraph? 
A.5. This section relates to software solutions that are proprietary and require licenses 

for software use. 
 
Page 18 Paragraph C ACA Safe Harbor  

a. ACA Safe Harbor 
The State and its utilizing agencies are not the employer of temporary or 
contracted staff. However, the State is concerned that it could be 
determined to be a Common-law Employer as defined by the Affordable 
Care Act (“ACA”). Therefore, the State seeks to utilize the “Common-law 
Employer Safe Harbor Exception” under the ACA to transfer health benefit 
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insurance requirements to the staffing company. The Common-law 
Employer Safe Harbor Exception can be attained when the State and/or its 
agencies are charged and pay for an “Additional Fee” with respect to the 
employees electing to obtain health coverage from the Vendor. The 
Common-law Employer Safe Harbor Exception under the ACA requires that 
an Additional Fee must be charged to those employees who obtain health 
coverage from the Vendor, but does not state the required amount of the 
fee. The State requires that all Vendors shall identify the Additional Fee to 
obtain health coverage from the Vendor and delineate the Additional Fee 
from all other charges and fees. The Vendor shall identify both the 
Additional Fee to be charged and the basis of how the fee is applied (i.e. 
per employee, per invoice, etc.). The State will consider the Additional Fee 
and prior to award reserves the right to negotiate any fees offered by the 
Vendor. Further, the Additional Fee shall be separately scored in the 
proposal to ensure that neither prices charged nor the Additional Fee 
charged will have a detrimental effect when selecting vendor(s) for award. 

Q.6. Can you clarify how this should be shown in our response? 
A.6. This is for informational purposes.  The intent of the State is to ensure the awarded 

vendor(s) maintain all employment provisions of its employees.  As stated in the 
RFP, page 2, Section II, Background, “The Statewide Building Security Committee; 
consisting of representatives from Capitol Police, Division of Facilities, and 
Department of Information and Technology, has been established to oversee and 
provide approval prior to the purchase of new security systems and upgrades on 
existing systems.”  Should it be determined the ACA Safe Harbor language applies, 
ACA Safe Harbor compliance can be required for the approval process. 

 
 Page 67 VII WARRANTY  
 a. Provide a minimum two-year warranty on all parts and labor, or longer if 

manufacturer of any component provides 
Q.7. Can you clarify the warranty period that must be assumed by the vendor of this 

contract as Page 22 Paragraph I states 1 Year warranty? 
A.7. RFP Page 67 VII Warranty is provided under Appendix B – SCOPE OF WORK AND 

TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS, which takes precedence over the General Terms and 
Conditions on Page 22.  The minimum warranty is two (2) years. 

 
Q.8. The RFP appears to be soliciting qualifications from security systems integrators to 

populate a short-list. Would it be appropriate to submit our qualifications as Security 
Consultants, who consult on system/policy/procedure needs do not have installation 
capabilities? 

A.8. Vendors must provide a proposal in respond to the specifications described in 
Appendix B – SCOPE OF WORK AND TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS.   

 
 Section Number: III. Required Information  
 Paragraph Number: B. General Evaluation Requirements  
 Page Number: 4 
 Text of Passage being questioned: “5. Demonstrated ability” 
Q.9. Will the evaluation committee travel to our office, so we can properly demonstrate 

our capabilities including sales and engineering, project management, service & 
support in-house testing & staging, warehouse & inventory, along with adequate 
back office staff for administration functions. 
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A.9. Vendors must provide adequate documentation in their proposal to address all 
contract requirements for evaluation.  After initial scoring, the Evaluation Team may 
select vendors to be invited to make oral presentations as described in the RFP on 
Page 15, Section 5., Oral Presentations.  If the Evaluation Team elects to provide oral 
presentations, they will be held at Government Support Services, allowing each 
invited vendor an equal opportunity for evaluating their presentations. 

 
 Section Number: IV. Professional Service RFP Administrative Information 
 Paragraph Number: #5 & C. RFP Evaluation Process #5 
 Page Number: 15 
 Text of Passage being questioned: 5. Oral Presentation 
Q.10. Will the evaluation committee travel to our office, so we can properly demonstrate 

our capabilities including sales and engineering, project management, service & 
support in-house testing & staging, warehouse & inventory, along with adequate 
back office staff for administration functions?  

A.10. Please refer to A. 11.  
 
 Section Number: V. Contract Terms and Conditions 
 Paragraph Number: I. Warranty 
 Page Number: 22 
 Text of Passage being questioned: “The Vendor will provide a warranty that the 

deliverables provided pursuant to the contract will function as designed for a period 
of no less than one (1) year from the date of system acceptance” 

Q.11. Under section number Appendix B., Paragraph VII. Warranty on page 67 it reads 
“Provide a minimum two-year warranty on all parts and labor, or longer if 
manufacturer of any component provides.”  What is the correct warranty language? 

A.11. Please refer to A. 9. 
 
 Section Number: Appendix B – Scope of Work and Technical Requirements 
 Paragraph Number: V. Monitoring 
 Page Number: 66 
 Text of Passage being questioned: “Vendors shall describe remote monitoring 

capabilities, to include pricing structure for service. All monitoring services must be 
compliant with the DTI Video Surveillance Policy. (Attachment 12)” 

 The DTI video surveillance policy (Attachment 12) does not make any reference to 
the remote monitoring capabilities for vendors, it actually seems to disallow it (I.8, 
I.9.c-e., 1.11 and 1.20).   

Q.12. If requiring real time staff monitoring of video surveillance cameras will a UL 
(Underwriters Laboratory) listed central monitoring station with licensed, certified, 
staff be required? 

A.12. Real time staff monitoring of video surveillance cameras is not a requirement of this 
RFP.  

 
Q.13. Or is this reference to providing health monitoring of the equipment? 
A.13. Remote monitoring as identified here is to monitor the health of the overall system 

and components. 
 
 Section Number: Appendix B – Scope of Work and Technical Requirements 
 Paragraph Number: IX. Job Bid Completion 
 Page Number: 69 
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 Text of Passage being questioned: “All change orders will be made at the request of 
the Agency and/or the Statewide Building Access Committee.  Change orders must 
be written in accordance with the original job proposal and submitted to the 
Statewide Building Access Committee.  There shall be no additional charges 
incurred for modifications to the job proposal.” 

Q.14. Can you provide more specificity on this?  As it currently reads, if a customer 
requests a proposal for one camera and it is determined that additional cameras are 
needed, the vendor is not able to charge for the additional cameras.  We believe this 
is not the intention but need clarification to confirm. 

A.14. The vendor shall not impose an additional fee to the Agency in order to reassess or 
make modifications to their original proposal for a project.  Vendors may adjust 
prices for additional equipment or services contained in the revised proposal. 

 
 Section Number: Appendix B – Scope of Work and Technical Requirements 
 Paragraph Number: D. Technical Response / “References” 
 Page Number: 72 
 Text of Passage being questioned: “References:  The Vendor shall provide a 

minimum of three (3) references of similar scope which best represents their abilities 
to satisfy the requirements of this RFP. References form current clients (those with 
which the Vendor has an existing contractual relationship) are preferred. References 
should include a brief narrative description of the assignment (discuss the scope of 
the services provided to the client).  A minimum of three (3) references shall also be 
provided for any Subcontractors listed as part of the Vendor’s proposal. References 
shall be able to document:” 

Q.15. Please confirm the references listed in this section are the same references required 
to be provided in Attachment 5 on page 32. 

A.15. References provided in Attachment 5 may be included in the narrative describing the 
assignment similar to the scope of services.  If Subcontractors are listed in 
Attachment 6, their references shall not be contained in Attachment 5, but shall be 
provided in the narrative of similar scope of work.  

 
 Section Number: Appendix B – Scope of Work and Technical Requirements 
 Paragraph Number: VIII. Service & Response Time / C. Server Updates and 

Maintenance 
 Page Number: 68 & Appendix C. Server Updates Tab 
 Text of Passage being questioned: “In order to maintain the integrity of software and 

programming changes to servers owned by the Agencies that accommodate 
multiple facilities with regard to building access and video surveillance systems, the 
Agency, at their discretion, may elect to identify one vendor to make programming 
changes due to new installations and upgrades affected by the contract.  Vendors 
are to provide flat rates for these services named in Appendix C. Additional flat rate 
service offerings may also be listed for consideration.” 

Q.16. What is being requested is a flat rate for services that are not fixed, such as 
database maintenance and cleanup.  Databases can differ in size and complexity.  
As such, when it says flat rate, is the State looking for an hourly rate?  If not, this will 
be very difficult to quantify and as such could result in inflated pricing to prepare for 
the large scale anomalies. 

A.16. Appendix C has been revised to include a column for Unit of Measure.  Units of 
measure shall be assessed for each line item identified and shall not be an hourly 
rate. 
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Q.17. If a flat is required, each of the ten rows on Appendix C Server Update Tab needs 
additional detail of scope to provide an appropriate dollar figure. 

A.17. Please refer to A. 18.  Additional line items may be added as needed to identify other 
services or units of measure i.e., 1-50; 50-100; >100 etc. 

   
Q.18. What is the required range of video retention? 
A.18. Please refer to the DTI Video Surveillance Standards found in Attachment 13. 
Q.19. Will the client require 24/7 recording, scheduled recording, motion-based, or a 

combination? 
A.19. Recording requirements will be at the discretion of each Agency request when 

contacting awarded vendors for job quotes. 
  
Q.20. Does the client plan to remotely monitor their video on a regular basis, or primarily 

when an incident has occurred. 
A.20. Monitoring requirements will be at the discretion of each Agency request when 

contacting awarded vendors for job quotes. 
 
Q.21. How many IP cameras are expected to be installed? 
A.21. The number of IP cameras are at the discretion of the Agency requesting quotes 

from awarded vendors. 
 
Q.22. What are the specific analytical requirements of the IP cameras? Will analytics be 

required for all cameras, or only certain cameras in specific areas? 
A.22. Analytic requirements will be at the discretion of the Agency requesting quotes from 

awarded vendors. 
 
Q.23. What will be the average bitrate setting of said IP cameras? 
A.23. There is no defined average bandwidth setting provided.  Bandwidth will be dictated 

by resolution, compression and mode of operation.  Vendors may provide average 
bandwidth requirements for their proposed equipment. 

 
 Section Number: Appendix B – Scope of Work and Technical Requirements 
 Paragraph Number: X. Standards 
 Page Number: 69 & 70 
 Text of Passage being questioned: “All installations must adhere to State policies 

and standards (http://dti.delaware.gov/information/standards-polcies.shtml). System 
Design and Network Configuration approval is granted through the DTI Business 
Case process and Architecture Review Contractors and/or other third parties are 
required to comply with these standards when proposing technology solutions to 
DTI or other state entities. Failure to comply with these standards may result in 
rejection by the Delaware Technology Investment Council.” 

Q.24. In the future will project proposals be reviewed by the Delaware Technology 
Investment Council as well as the Statewide Building Access Committee?   

A.24. Future proposals under this contract will be reviewed by the Building Access 
Committee.  Once approve to proceed, the System Design and Network Diagrams 
will be reviewed through the DTI Business Case process and the Architecture 
Review Board.  Large scale projects may also be reviewed by the Delaware 
Technology Investment Council. 

 
 

All other terms and conditions remain the same. 


	ADDENDUM # 1

